
CITY OF MENOMONIE 
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA 

Menomonie City Hall 
800 Wilson Avenue 

1st Floor, City Council Chambers 
7:00pm 

Monday – July 28, 2025 
 

Page 1 of 1 
 

1. Roll Call 
2. Approval of Minutes – May 27, 2025 
3. Public Comments (agenda items only). 
4. New Business 

a) Consider recommendation regarding temporary zoning of Agriculture (A) 
District for the proposed annexation of certain lands along County 
Highway B between 650th Avenue (also known as Eagle Point Road) and 
690th Avenue from the Town of Red Cedar. 

b) Consider recommendation regarding proposed rezoning of certain lands 
along County Highway B between 650th Avenue (also known as Eagle Point 
Road) and 690th Avenue from Agriculture (A) to Restricted Industrial (I-1) 
District. 

c) Consider recommendation regarding proposed rezoning of certain lands 
along 21st Avenue Northeast and 7th Avenue Northeast (Menomonie 
Alliance Church) from Single Family Residential (R-1) to Local Commercial 
(B-2) District. 

d) Consider approval of Doug Kettner’s Proposed Certified Survey Map on 
August Lane. 

e) Consider approval of Eric & Jaclyn Peissig’s Proposed Certified Survey Map 
on Eagle Point Drive. 

5. Adjourn 
 
Notice is hereby given that members of the Plan Commission and/or Common Council 
may be present at the foregoing meeting to gather information about a subject over which 
they have decision-making responsibility.  This constitutes a meeting of the Plan 
Commission and/or Common Council pursuant to State ex rel. Badke v. Greendale Village 
Board, 173 Wis.2d 553, 494 N.W.2d 408 (1993) and must be noticed as such, although the 
Common Council will not take any formal action at this meeting. 
 
NOTE: Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of 
individuals with disabilities. For additional information or to request the service, contact 
the City Clerk or the City Administrator at 715-232-2221.  



Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 
 

Chairman Luther called the Plan Commission Meeting to order in the City Hall Council Chambers 
on Tuesday May 27, 2025 at 7:00 p.m. 
 

1. Roll Call: Jeff Luther, Cody Gentz, Lowell Prange, Steve Lindberg, Dennis Kropp, Steve Cook, 
and Dick Martinson.  Others Present:  David Schofield, Dave Kowieski, Ron Jasperson 
(AC/a). 

2. Approval of Minutes: Cook moved to approve the April 28, 2025, Plan Commission 
minutes with a second by Lindberg.  Motion carried. 

3. Public Comments: None. 
4. Items of Discussion: 

a. Schofield presented the proposed Laird-McConnell certified survey map on 15th 
Street SE.  Schofield indicated that the certified survey map will merge three 
existing lots into one buildable lot.  Schofield noted that the property is zoned 
Single Family Residential (R-1) and a home is proposed to be constructed thereon.    
Martinson moved to approve the Laird-McConnell certified survey map, with a 
second by Gentz.  Motion carried. 

b. Schofield and Kowieski provided an update regarding Victory Church, the USH 
12/STH 25 project, Estover Terrace, Tanglewood and Pine Avenue project.  
Schofield indicated that the next Plan Commission meeting is scheduled for 
Monday June 23, 2025.  Prange noted that he will not be able to attend on that 
date.  No actions taken. 

5. Martinson moved to adjourn with a second by Lindberg. Motion carried. 
 

Minutes Recorded by David Schofield 



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

1 
 

TO:   Plan Commission 
 
FROM:  David Schofield, Director of Public Works  
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Ordinance 2025-04 – Annexation of Certain Lands Along CTH B 
 
DATE:   July 28, 2025 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Nicholas Rassbach, Ronnie E. Prochnow, Rusk Prairie Farms, LLC, Red Cedar Produce, LLC, Janet 
L. Koepl, Gregory M. Quilling, Anthony J. Swanson, and Adrie E. Swanson have submitted the 
attached Petition for Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval for lands along County Highway 
B between Eagle Point Road (also known as 650th Avenue) and 690th Avenue. 
 
Atty. Ludeman has prepared Proposed Ordinance 2025-04 which, if adopted, would complete 
the proposed annexation.  Section 3 of the proposed ordinance would temporarily designate 
the newly annexed lands to be part of the Agricultural District (A) for zoning purposes.  Because 
this pertains to land use, Proposed Ordinance 2025-04 was referred to the Plan Commission to 
review the temporary zoning prior to introduction and adoption by the City Council. 
 
City Staff would suggest that the Plan Commission should consider the following questions with 
respect to the temporary zoning: 
 

1. Is the proposed temporary Agriculture (A) District compatible with the applicant’s 
request?  

a. City Staff notes that the applicants requested temporary Agriculture (A) District 
in paragraph 8 on Page 2 of the Annexation Petition. 
 

2. Are the land uses that currently exist on the annexation properties (which include farm 
fields, single family residential and a greenhouse) compatible with the proposed 
temporary Agriculture (A) District?  

a. City Code 10-6-1 (which is attached) allows “any use permitted in the single-
family residential district”. 

b. City Code 10-6-1 also allows “general farming…”.  City Code 10-1-4 defines 
farming as “…the same meaning as "Agricultural Use" contained in section 
91.01(2)(a), Wisconsin statutes, as amended”.  Wis. Stats. 91.01(2)(a) defines 
agricultural use as “Any of the following activities conducted for the purpose of 
producing an income or livelihood: … 1. Crop or forage production”. 
 



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

2 
 

 
3. Is the proposed temporary Agriculture (A) District the most restrictive that 

accommodates the existing land uses? 
a. City Staff notes that the only District more restrictive than Agriculture (A) District 

is Open Development Conservancy (C) District. 
b. City Code 10-5-1 allows the following in the Open Development Conservancy (C) 

District:  
i. “Facilities and structures for drainage, flood control, hydroelectric power, 

power transmission, ponding, conservation, erosion control, reclamation, 
fire prevention”. 

ii. “Harvesting of wild crops such as marsh hay, ferns, moss, berries”. 
iii. “Management of forestry, wildlife and fish”. 
iv. “Not for profit historical/heritage museums”. 
v. “Parks and open recreational areas”. 

vi. “Uses accessory or customarily incidental to any of the above facilities”. 
 

4. What has the City historically used as the temporary zoning classifications for newly 
annexed lands? 

a. City Staff notes that the City has historically used the Agriculture (A) District as 
the temporary zoning classifications, most recently Cedarbrook Church (on 
Wilson Street) and Harmony Parks (on Eagle Point Road) 

 
It is City’s Staff’s recommendation that Agriculture (A) District be used as the temporary zoning 
for the proposed annexation.   
 
If the Plan Commission concurs, the appropriate motion would be to Recommend Agriculture 
(A) District be used as the Temporary Zoning Classification within Proposed Ordinance 2025-
04 (simple majority vote).   
 
The Plan Commission’s recommendation will be shared with the City Council on August 4, 2025.  
The City Council will consider introduction and adoption of Proposed Ordinance 2025-04 on 
that date.  
 
Attachments: 

• Location Map 

• Petition for Direct Annexation by Unanimous Approval 

• City Code 10-6-1, Agriculture (A) District 

• City Code 10-5-1, Open Development Conservancy (C) District 

• Proposed Ordinance 2025-04 













































CHAPTER 6

A AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT

SECTION:

10-6-1: Uses

10-6-2: Height, Yards And Area

10-6-1: USES:
In the A agricultural district, no building or premises shall be used and no building shall hereafter be
erected, converted in use, enlarged, moved or structurally altered unless otherwise provided in this
title, except for one or more of the following uses:

Any use permitted in the single-family residential district.

Dams, power plants and flowage areas.

General farming, except farms operated for the disposal of garbage, rubbish, offal or sewage.

Hospitals and clinics, same as provided in subsection 10-4-2K of this title.

Mobile home parks when the location of each such park shall have been approved in writing by the
board of appeals, after public hearing. In approving such a location, the board shall view the proposed
site or sites and shall consider such evidence as may be presented at the hearing, bearing upon the
general purpose and intent of this title to promote the public health, safety and general welfare, and
the specific purpose of this section to prevent the overcrowding of land and the development of
housing blight in rural areas. The provisions of section 66.0435, Wisconsin statutes, and all
amendments and codes of the city relating thereto, are hereby made a part of this chapter to the
extent applicable, and shall be considered a part hereof the same as though herein printed and set
forth in full.

Roadside stands for the sale of farm products.

Signs not over eight (8) square feet in area advertising the sale or lease of farm property or the sale of
farm products produced on the premises, provided that no advertising sign of any other character shall
be permitted in the agricultural district.

   A.   Chapter 84.30, Wisconsin statutes, and chapter HY19, Wisconsin administrative code, are
adopted insofar as they apply to signs adjacent to any interstate highway.

Telephone, telegraph and power transmission towers, poles and lines, including transformers,
substations, relay stations, equipment housings and other similar necessary appurtenant facilities;
radio and television stations and transmission towers and microwave radio relay towers. (1975 Code
Ch. 18 § VI; amd. Ord. 2013-07, 4-1-2013)

10-6-2: HEIGHT, YARDS AND AREA:
   A.   Generally: For buildings hereafter erected, converted in use, enlarged, moved or structurally
altered for human habitation, the minimum dimensions of yards, the lot area per family and minimum
dwelling size shall be the same as is required for chapter 7, "R-1 Single-Family Residential District", of
this title; and provided that, when applicable, where the regulations of chapter H65, state division of
health administrative code, require a larger lot area than any of the above, such regulation shall
govern.



   B.   Setback: There shall be a setback of not less than twenty five feet (25'). Same as provided in
section 10-1-4, definition of "yard, front", and subsections 10-4-2E, 10-4-3A, 10-4-5B, C, D, E, and
section 10-4-6 of this title.

   C.   Off Street Parking: Same as provided in section 10-4-7 of this title. (1975 Code Ch. 18 § VI)



CHAPTER 5

C OPEN DEVELOPMENT - CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

SECTION:

10-5-1: Uses

10-5-2: Height, Yards And Area

10-5-1: USES:
In the C open development - conservancy district, no building or premises shall be used and no
building shall hereafter be erected, converted in use, enlarged, moved or structurally altered unless
otherwise provided in this title, except for one or more of the following uses:

   A.   Unconditionally Permitted Uses:

Facilities and structures for drainage, flood control, hydroelectric power, power transmission, ponding,
conservation, erosion control, reclamation, fire prevention.

Harvesting of wild crops such as marsh hay, ferns, moss, berries.

Management of forestry, wildlife and fish.

Not for profit historical/heritage museums.

Parks and open recreational areas.

Uses accessory or customarily incidental to any of the above facilities.

   B.   Conditionally Permitted Uses: The following uses when the location thereof shall have been
approved in writing by the board of appeals following a public hearing. Such approval shall be
consistent with the general purpose and intent of this title and shall be based upon such evidence as
may be presented at such public hearing that proposed uses will be established and maintained under
conditions consistent with preserving the public health and safety and preventing water or air
contamination or pollution:

Boat harbors, marinas.

Crop and tree farming.

Fuel transmission lines and related facilities.

Golf courses.

Gravel pits, stone quarries and washing and grading of products. (1975 Code Ch. 18 § V)

10-5-2: HEIGHT, YARDS AND AREA:
   A.   Generally: For buildings hereafter erected, converted in use, enlarged, moved or structurally
altered, the building height limit, setback, minimum dimension of yards, minimum lot area and
minimum dwelling size shall be the same as in the agricultural district and in the single-family
residential district.

   B.   Vision Clearance: Same as provided in subsection 10-4-5G of this title.

   C.   Off Street Parking: Same as provided in section 10-4-7 of this title. (1975 Code Ch. 18 § V)











MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

1 
 

TO:   Plan Commission 
 
FROM:  David Schofield, Director of Public Works  
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Ordinance 2025-05 – Rezoning of Certain Lands Along CTH B 
 
DATE:   July 28, 2025 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Nicholas Rassbach, Ronnie E. Prochnow, Rusk Prairie Farms, LLC, Red Cedar Produce, LLC, Janet 
L. Koepl, Anthony J. Swanson, Adrie E. Swanson and Balloonist, LLC (“Balloonist”) have 
submitted the attached Request for Rezoning from Temporary Agriculture (A) District to 
Restricted Industrial (I-1) District for lands along the east side of County Highway B between 
Eagle Point Road (also known as 650th Avenue) and 690th Avenue.  Please note that Gregory M. 
Quilling has not requested rezoning and would remain Agriculture (A) District. 
 
The intended use is a data center.   
 
Atty. Ludeman has prepared Proposed Ordinance 2025-05 which, if adopted, would complete 
the proposed rezoning.  Because this pertains to land use, Proposed Ordinance 2025-05 was 
introduced by the City Council and referred to the Plan Commission for a recommendation prior 
to final consideration by the City Council. 
 
City Staff would suggest that the Plan Commission should consider the following questions with 
respect to the proposed rezoning: 
 

1. Is the proposed Restricted Industrial (I-1) District compatible with the applicant’s 
request?  

a. City Staff notes that the applicants requested Restricted Industrial (I-1) District on 
the Request for Rezoning (which is attached). 
 

2. Is the proposed land use compatible with the proposed Restricted Industrial (I-1) 
District?  

a. City Code 10-14-1 (which is attached) allows “Storage or warehousing of 
materials or products…” and “Uses customarily incidental to the foregoing uses 
and accessory buildings and structures”. 

  



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

2 
 

b. City Code 10-1-4 (which is attached) indicates that warehousing “shall mean any 
of the following … D. Establishments used primarily for the storage, management, 
processing, and transmission of digital data, which houses computer or network 
equipment, systems, servers, appliances, and other associated components 
related to digital data storage and operations”. 

 
3. Is the proposed Restricted Industrial (I-1) District the most restrictive that 

accommodates the proposed land use? 
a. City Staff notes that data centers would be allowed in the Restricted Industrial 2 

(I-2) District and the General Industrial (I-3) District, both of which are less 
restrictive than the proposed Restricted Industrial (I-1) District.   
 

4. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the City’s adjacent zoning districts? 
a. City Staff notes that the City’s zoning map shows the lands to the west and 

southwest of the proposed rezoning in the City are zoned Restricted Industrial (I-
1) District and General Industrial (I-3) District, respectively. 

b. City Staff notes that Mr. Quilling’s property on the west side of CTH B, which is 
part of the annexation petition but not the request to rezone, will be an island of 
Agriculture (A) District entirely surrounded by Restricted Industrial (I-1) District.  
City Staff note that Mr. Quilling has specifically and consciously opted out of the 
proposed rezoning.  
 

5. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan? 
a. City Staff notes that the City’s Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (which 

is attached) shows “Future Industrial” in the areas north of Eagle Point Road (also 
known as 650th Avenue) and east of Stokke Parkway. 
 

6. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the Town/City Development Map? 
a. City Staff notes that the City of Menomonie and adjoining Towns, including the 

Town of Red Cedar, prepared a Town/City Development Map over a series of 
meetings in August 2021, October 2021, January 2022, March 2022, June 2022, 
and August 2022. 

b. City Staff notes that the City of Menomonie and adjoining Towns, including the 
Town of Red Cedar, reviewed the Town/City Development Map in January 2024 
and April 2024. 

c. City Staff notes that the Town/City Development Map (which is attached) shows 
the entire property proposed to be rezoned as “Town/City Future Development”. 

 
  



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

3 
 

City Staff is aware of public comments regarding the following: 
 

1. Town of Red Cedar’s Comprehensive Plan 
a. City Staff note that the City of Menomonie is under no obligation to follow the 

Town of Red Cedar’s Comprehensive Plan. 
b. City Staff note that the Town of Red Cedar participated in the development of the 

Town/City Development Map and reviewed on at least eight (8) occasions. 
 

2. Development of Farmland 
a. City Staff note that the 2022 USDA Census of Agriculture for Dunn County (which 

is attached) indicates that there were, at that time, 260,795 acres of croplands in 
Dunn County, of which 51,998 acres were irrigated.   

b. City Staff note that the proposed annexation and rezoning impact 0.12% of all 
cropland in Dunn County and 0.31% of irrigated cropland in Dunn County.  

 
3. Water Usage 

a. City Staff note that some data centers use evaporative cooling, which use 
significant quantities of water.   

b. City Staff note that Balloonist has proposed to use a closed loop cooling system.  
According to Balloonist, the closed loop cooling system would use an average of 
approximately 75,000 gallons per day of municipal water and wastewater.  If 
compared to 2024 water sales, Balloonist would be the City’s fifth (5th) largest 
user behind Cardinal FG, 3M, ConAgra and UW-Stout. 

 
4. Energy Usage 

a. City Staff note that the City of Menomonie does not operate an electric utility. 
b. City Staff note that Balloonist is working with Xcel Energy and the Wisconsin 

Public Service Commission regarding energy matters. 
 
The Plan Commission can take the following actions: 

 

• If the Plan Commission concurs with the proposed rezoning from Temporary Agriculture 
(A) District to Restricted Industrial (I-1) District, the appropriate motion would be  
Recommend approval of proposed Ordinance 2025-05 (simple majority vote).   
 

• If the Plan Commission does not concur with the proposed rezoning from Temporary 
Agriculture (A) District to Restricted Industrial (I-1) District, the appropriate motion 
would be Recommend denial of proposed Ordinance 2025-05 (simple majority vote). 
 



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

4 
 

 
The Plan Commission’s recommendation will be shared with the City Council on August 4, 2025.  
A public hearing will be held that evening City Council meeting (which has been publicly noticed 
including publication of a Class II Public Notice and a mailing to all property owners within 350-
feet) to gather public input.  After the public hearing, the City Council will consider adoption of 
Proposed Ordinance 2025-05.  
 
Attachments: 

• Location Map 

• Request for Rezoning 

• City Code 10-14-1, Restricted Industrial (I-1) District 

• City Code 10-1-4, Zoning Definitions 

• City of Menomonie Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map 

• Town/City Development Map 

• 2022 USDA Census of Agriculture for Dunn County 

• Proposed Ordinance 2025-05 























CHAPTER 14

I-1 RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

SECTION:

10-14-1: Uses

10-14-2: Height, Yards, Area And Other Requirements

10-14-1: USES:
   A.   In the restricted industrial district, no building or premises shall be used and no building shall
hereafter be erected, converted in use, enlarged, moved or structurally altered unless otherwise
provided in this title, except for one or more of the following uses:

Any use permitted in the commercial district, conditionally or unconditionally, including any residential
uses and educational, religious, charitable or medical institutions constructed, under construction or
for which a valid building permit has been issued on or before the effective date of this title; provided
that after such date no new residential uses or educational, religious, charitable or medical institutions
shall be permitted.

Airports.

Contractor's storage yard.

Enameling and painting shops, provided that all painting, cleaning and related operations shall be
conducted within a building.

Food locker plants.

Laboratories.

Machine shops and sheet metal products manufacture, provided that no stamp or punch presses
exceeding twenty (20) tons' capacity, or forge or drop hammers shall be located within two hundred
feet (200') of the boundary of any residential district.

Manufacture and assembly of home and office appliances and supplies, sporting goods and supplies.

Manufacture and bottling of nonalcoholic beverages.

Manufacture of electrical and electronic appliances and devices.

Manufacture of jewelry, toys and novelties.

Manufacture of products from textiles, furs, glass, leather, plaster, paper, plastics, rubber and wood,
not including planing mills or the manufacture of paper, pulp, plastics or leather or the tanning of hides.

Processing, packing and manufacture of confections, cosmetics, food and pharmaceuticals, except
meat and meat products, fish and fish products, sauerkraut and cabbage byproducts and the vining of
peas.

Storage or warehousing of materials or products, provided that all such storage or warehousing shall
be within a fully enclosed building or inside a screening wall forming a complete opaque screen not
less than six feet (6') in height; and provided further that no materials or products shall be stacked or
piled so as to exceed the height of such screening wall. The materials used for the screening wall may
be an earthen berm and/or plants and/or solid fencing. No woven metal or chainlink fence shall be
used for such screening.



Uses customarily incidental to the foregoing uses and accessory buildings and structures. (1975 Code
Ch. 18 § XIII; amd. Ord. 2009-01, 2-16-2009)

   B.   The following uses are strictly prohibited whether or not they are located in a fully enclosed
building:

Ammunition manufacture, storage or warehousing.

Automobile wrecking yard.

Explosives manufacture, storage or warehousing.

Fireworks manufacture, storage or warehousing.

Inflammable gases or liquids manufacture, storage or warehousing (except in conjunction with the
operation of an airport).

Junkyard. (Ord. 2009-01, 2-16-2009)
10-14-2: HEIGHT, YARDS, AREA AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS:
In the restricted industrial district, the height of buildings, minimum dimensions of yards, minimum lot
area, vision clearance, off street parking and other requirements shall be as follows for all buildings
hereafter erected, converted in used, enlarged, moved or structurally altered:

   A.   Height: Forty five feet (45') or three (3) stories, whichever is least.

   B.   Front Yard Setback: There shall be a front yard setback of fifty feet (50').

   C.   Side Yard Setback: There shall be a side yard setback of ten feet (10'); except that on any
corner lot, the setback on the street side yard of the corner lot shall be twenty five feet (25').
Notwithstanding the above, if the side yard directly abuts any residential district, the side yard setback
shall be twenty five feet (25'); provided, however, if the boundary line is a public street or public alley,
the side yard shall not be deemed to directly abut the residential district.

   D.   Rear Yard Setback: There shall be a rear yard setback of twenty five feet (25'). Loading
platforms may be established in such rear yard where it abuts on a railroad.

   E.   Lot Area: Same as provided in section 14-4-7 of this code.

   F.   Vision Clearance: Same as provided in subsection 10-4-5G of this title.

   G.   Off Street Parking: Same as provided in section 10-4-7 of this title. (Ord. 2008-05, 5-19-2008)



10-1-4: DEFINITIONS:
For the purposes of this title, certain words and terms are defined as follows:

Words used in the present tense include the future; the singular number includes the plural number
and the plural number includes the singular number; the word "building" includes the word "structure",
the word "shall" is mandatory and not directory. Any words not herein defined shall be construed as
defined in the state and city building codes.

ADT: Average daily traffic volume on a street.

ACCESSORY USE OR BUILDING: A use or building on the same lot with and subordinate to the main
use or building, and customarily incidental thereto. An automobile trailer or other vehicle or part
thereof, or other building used as a temporary or permanent dwelling or lodging place, is not an
accessory use or building for the purposes of this title.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING: Housing in which mortgage, amortization, taxes, insurance, and
condominium and association fees, if any, constitute no more than twenty eight percent (28%) of gross
household income for a household of the size which may occupy the unit. In the case of dwelling units
for rent, housing that is affordable means housing for which the rent and utilities constitute no more
than thirty percent (30%) of gross annual household income for a household of the size that may
occupy the unit.

AIRPORT, PUBLIC: Any airport which complies with the definitions contained in section 114.013(3),
Wisconsin statutes, or any airport which serves or offers to serve common carriers engaged in air
transport.

ALLEY: A public or private way less than twenty one feet (21') wide which affords only secondary
vehicular access to abutting property.

ARTERIAL: A major street for carrying a large volume of through traffic in the area, normally controlled
by traffic signs and signals.

AUTOMOBILE WRECKING YARD: Any premises on which more than one automotive vehicle not in
running or operating condition is stored in the open.

BASEMENT: A story partly or wholly underground, which, if occupied for living purposes, shall be
counted as a story for purposes of height measurements.

BLOCK: A unit of one and bounded by streets or a combination of streets and public land, railroad
right of way, water mains, or any other barrier to the community of development.

BUILDING: Any structure having a roof supported by columns or walls and used, designed or intended
for the protection, shelter or enclosure of persons, animals or property. When a building is divided into
separate parts by unpierced walls extending from the ground up, each part shall be deemed a
separate building. The word "building" includes the word "structure".

BUILDING, ACCESSORY: See definition of Accessory Use Or Building.

BUILDING, HEIGHT OF: The vertical distance from the average curb level in front of the lot or the
finished grade at the front building line, whichever is higher, to the highest point of the coping of a flat
roof, to the deck line of a mansard roof, or to the average height of the highest gable of a gambrel, hip
or pitch roof. The average height of a gambrel, hip or pitch roof is the mid height between the roof
eaves and the roof ridge, regardless of the shape of the roof.

BUILDING, MAIN: A building constituting the principal use of a lot.

BUILDING SCALE: The relationship between the mass of a building and its surroundings, including
the width of street, open space, and mass of surrounding buildings. Mass is determined by the three-
dimensional bulk of a structure: height, width, and depth.



COLLECTOR: A street designed to carry moderate volumes of traffic from local streets to arterial
streets or from arterial to arterial.

COMMON OPEN SPACE: Squares, greens, neighborhood parks, city parks, and linear environmental
corridors owned and maintained by the city.

CONTRACTOR'S STORAGE YARD: A parcel of land used by a building contractor, electrical
contractor, plumbing contractor, heating and ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC) contractor,
concrete contractor, drywall contractor, painting contractor, masonry contractor, flooring contractor,
steel erecting contractor, steel fabricating contractor or other construction related contractor for the
purpose of on site fabrication or for the storage of supplies, equipment, inventory or materials, or
components thereof, customarily used in the trade carried on by the contractor.

COURT: An open space which is bounded on two (2) or more sides by the walls of a building,
unoccupied and unobstructed upward from the ground or from the intersection of such building walls
with a roof, except for such projections as are permitted hereinafter.

DWELLING, MULTIPLE: A building or portion thereof designed for and occupied by more than two (2)
families including tenement houses, row houses, apartment houses and apartment hotels.

DWELLING, SINGLE-FAMILY: A detached building designed for and occupied exclusively by one
family. This definition shall include a manufactured home.

DWELLING, TWO-FAMILY: A detached or semidetached building designed for and occupied
exclusively by two (2) families.

EXCEPTION: The use of property, including the use and location of buildings, the size of lots and the
dimensions of yards, otherwise not allowable under the terms of this title, for which a special permit
may be issued under conditions specified in this title.

FAMILY: One or more persons related by blood, marriage, adoption or legal guardianship, living
together in one dwelling unit as a single housekeeping entity.

FARMING: Shall have the same meaning as "Agricultural Use" contained in section 91.01(2)(a),
Wisconsin statutes, as amended. The keeping or maintaining of chickens in accordance with Title 3,
Chapter 21 of this code shall not be considered Farming. The keeping or maintaining of domestic pets
in accordance with Title 5, Chapter 3 of this code shall not be considered Farming.

FITNESS CENTER: An establishment that, for profit, provides as its primary purpose services or
facilities that are purported to assist patrons in physical exercise, in weight control, or in figure
development, including, but not limited to, a fitness center, studio, salon or club. "Fitness center" does
not include an organization solely offering training or facilities in an individual sport or a weight
reduction center.

FLOOR AREA: The area within the exterior wall lines of a building; provided, that the floor area of a
dwelling shall not include attics, basement or utility rooms, garage, breezeway and unenclosed
porches, and other areas not furnished or usable as living quarters.

FRONTAGE: All the property abutting on one side of a street between two (2) intersecting streets or all
of the property abutting on one side of a street between an intersecting street and the dead end of a
street.

GARAGE, PRIVATE: An accessory building or space for the storage of motor driven vehicles.

GARAGE, PUBLIC: Any building or premises other than a private or a storage garage, where motor
driven vehicles, pursuant to previous arrangements and not to transients, where no equipment, parts,
fuel, grease or oil is sold and vehicles are not equipped, serviced, repaired, hired or sold.



HOME OCCUPATION: A gainful occupation, conducted by members of the family only, within their
place of residence and that no stock in trade is kept or sold; that no sign other than an unlighted
nameplate of not more than one square foot in area is installed and that no person other than a
member of the immediate family living on the premises is employed in such occupation.

HOMELESS SHELTER FACILITY: Any facility with overnight sleeping accommodations, the primary
purpose of which is to provide temporary shelter for the homeless in general or for specific populations
of the homeless.

HOTEL: A building in which lodging, with or without meals, is offered to transient guests for
compensation in which there are more than five (5) sleeping rooms with no cooking facilities in any
individual room or apartment except those occupied by the owner or manager.

JUNKYARD: Any premises on which there is an accumulation of scrap metal, paper, rags, glass, scrap
lumber or other scrap materials stored or customarily stored for salvage or sale, unless such
accumulation shall be housed in a completely enclosed building.

LESS RESTRICTED: The use of land or buildings permitted in a certain district is less restricted than
other uses permitted in districts appearing earlier in the numerical order in which such districts are
numbered in this title.

LIVESTOCK: Shall have the same meaning as "Livestock" contained in section 97.42(1)(em),
Wisconsin statutes, as amended. Domestic pets in accordance with Title 5, Chapter 3 of this code
shall not be considered Livestock.

LOADING SPACE: An off street space or berth on the same lot with a building, or contiguous to a
group of buildings, and abutting on or affording direct access to a public street or alley, for the
temporary parking of a commercial vehicle while loading or unloading cargo. A loading space is not a
parking space for the purposes of this title.

LODGING OR ROOMING HOUSE: Any single-family residential premises (1 dwelling unit per
structure) occupied by three (3) or more persons unrelated by blood or marriage to each other, or any
other premises all or a portion of which is occupied by three (3) or more persons unrelated by blood or
marriage to each other.

LOT: A parcel of land having a width and depth sufficient to provide the space necessary for one main
building and its accessory buildings, together with the open spaces required by this title and abutting
on a public street or officially approved place.

LOT, AREA OF: The horizontally projected area within the lot lines, not including any areas lying within
streets or alleys dedicated to the public or shown on the official map.

LOT, CORNER: A lot abutting on two (2) or more streets at their intersection, provided that the interior
angle of such intersection is less than one hundred thirty five degrees (135°).

LOT, INTERIOR: A lot other than a corner lot.

LOT LINES: The lines bounding a "lot" as defined herein.

LOT, THROUGH: An interior lot having frontage on two (2) nonintersecting streets.

LOT, WIDTH OF: The shortest distance between the side lines of a lot, measured at the rear of the
required front yard.

MANUFACTURED HOME: Shall have the meaning set forth at sections 66.0435(1)(cm) and
101.91(2), Wisconsin statutes.

MINI-STORAGE FACILITY: A storage facility consisting of no more than two hundred (200) separate
and distinct units each of which shall not exceed four hundred (400) square feet in size and each of



which shall be made secure by the installation of individualized locks. The facility may consist of no
more than five (5) separate structures each of which shall not exceed fifteen feet (15') in height. No
flammable, corrosive, or otherwise hazardous liquids, gases, or solids shall be permitted to be stored
at said facility except such materials that are necessary for the movement of storage items into and
away from the facility and which are in fact located within the stored item. Each unit is to be used by
individuals and/or business concerns for the purpose of "dead storing" household items and/or
inventory and no work on or with the stored or to be stored items shall be permitted except insofar as
is necessary to deposit or remove the stored item or items.

MOBILE HOME: Shall have the meaning set forth at section 101.91(10), Wisconsin statutes, and for
purposes of this title, shall also have the meaning of the term manufactured home as that term is
defined at sections 66.0435(1)(cm) and 101.91(2), Wisconsin statutes. A recreational mobile home
shall not, for purposes of this title, be included in this definition.

MOBILE HOME COURT: See definition of Mobile Home Park.

MOBILE HOME PARK: Shall have the meaning of the term manufactured and mobile home
community, as that term is defined at section 66.0435(1)(cg), Wisconsin statutes, and shall also have
the meaning of the term manufactured home community as that term is defined at section 101.91(5m),
Wisconsin statutes.

MODEL HOME: A dwelling unit used for the purpose of displaying the materials, construction
methods, physical arrangement or other characteristics of dwelling units available for purchase, lease
or rent.

MORE RESTRICTED: The use of land or buildings permitted in a certain district is more restricted
than other uses permitted in districts appearing later in the numerical order in which such districts are
numbered in this title.

MOTEL: A building or group of buildings in which lodging, with or without meals, is offered to transient
guests for compensation, with no kitchen facilities in any individual room or apartment, and with not
less than one off street parking space provided for each such room or apartment.

NET ACRE: An acre of land excluding street right of way and other publicly dedicated improvements
such as parks, open space and stormwater detention and retention facilities.

NONCONFORMING USE: A building or premises lawfully used or occupied at the time of the passage
of this title or amendments thereto, which use or occupancy does not conform to the regulations of this
title or any amendments thereto.

PARKING LOT: A building or premises off the public street containing one or more parking spaces,
open to the public free or for a fee, and providing access from a public street or alley to each parking
space within such parking lot.

PARKING SPACE: An unobstructed piece of ground or floor space sufficient for the temporary storage
of one automobile. Each such parking space shall not be less than nine feet (9') wide and one
hundred eighty (180) square feet in area exclusive of maneuvering space and access from or to a
public street or alley. A loading space is not a parking space for the purposes of this title.

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT: A lot with more than one main building and/or a building with more
than twelve (12) residential dwelling units.

POULTRY: Shall have the same meaning as "Poultry" contained in section 97.42(1)(L), Wisconsin
statutes, as amended. Domestic pets in accordance with Title 5, Chapter 3 of this code shall not be
considered Poultry.

PROFESSIONAL OFFICE: The office of a doctor, practitioner, dentist, minister, architect, landscape
architect, professional engineer, lawyer, author, musician or other recognized profession.



QUEING: The use of one travel lane on local street with parking (usually an intermittent parking
pattern) on both sides.

RECYCLING FACILITIES: A facility that includes one or more of the following four (4) types of
facilities:

   A.   Reverse Vending Machine: A mechanical device that accepts one or more types of empty
beverage containers and issues a cash refund. There are two (2) types of reverse vending machines:
single fed and bulk fed. Single fed machines resemble soda vending machines in size and
appearance. Bulk reverse vending machines are larger and accept several containers at once.
Because of their larger size and noise, bulk vending machines will be deemed to be "small collection
facilities" in this title.

   B.   Small Collection Facilities: These facilities are smaller than three hundred (300) square feet in
size and are intended for collection only. Such facilities have room for limited day to day storage of
material, and do not include power driven processing equipment except as part of bulk reverse
vending machines. These facilities are typically an accessory use on a site.

   C.   Large Collection Facilities: Such facilities will typically involve buying or accepting material from
the public, moving it to a shipping container and storing it until there is enough for a shipment. These
facilities are larger than three hundred (300) square feet in size and most likely are the principal use of
the building on site, rather than an accessory use. These facilities have capacity for aggregating and
storing large amounts of materials on site in preparation for shipping to processing facilities.

   D.   Processing Facilities: A building used for the collection and processing of recyclable materials.
"Processing" means the preparation of materials for efficient shipment, or to an end user's
specifications, by such means as baling, briquetting, compacting, flattening, grinding, crushing,
mechanical sorting, shredding, cleaning or remanufacturing.

ROADSIDE STAND: A structure not permanently fixed to the ground that is readily removable in its
entirety, covered or uncovered and not wholly enclosed, and used solely for the sale of farm products
produced on the premises.

SECONDARY DWELLING UNIT: An additional dwelling unit located within the principal dwelling on
the lot in a freestanding building or above a residential garage.

SETBACK: The depth of the front yard, measured horizontally on a lot from and at right angles to the
front line or the right of way line of a proposed street on the official map, whichever results in the
greater front yard depth, excluding only such projections as are permitted hereinafter.

SIGN: Any structure or device, except those placed by the public authorities for public purposes, on
which advertising is displayed or attention is directed to advertising on the same or any other structure
by any means visible to the eye.

STORY: That portion of a building included between the surface of a floor and the surface of the floor
next above it, or, if there be no floor above it, then the space between the floor and the ceiling next
above it. A basement or cellar, if not occupied for living purposes, having one-half (1/2) or more of its
height above grade shall be deemed a story for purposes of height regulation.

STORY, HALF: The space under any roof except a flat roof, the wall plates of which on at least two (2)
opposite exterior walls are not more than two feet (2') above the floor of such story.

STREET: All property dedicated or intended for public or private street purposes or subject to public
easements therefor, which affords the principal means of vehicular access to abutting property, and is
over forty feet (40') in width.

STREET LINE: A dividing line between a lot, tract or parcel of land and a contiguous street.



STREET, SIDE: The street abutting one side line of a corner lot.

STRUCTURAL ALTERATIONS: Any change in the supporting members of a building or any change in
the roof structure or in the exterior walls.

STRUCTURE: Anything constructed or erected, the use of which requires a permanent location on the
ground or attached to something having a permanent location on the ground.

TEMPORARY STRUCTURE: A movable structure not designed for human occupancy nor permanent
location or attachment.

TRADITIONAL NEIGHBORHOOD: A compact, mixed use neighborhood where residential,
commercial and civic buildings are within close proximity to each other.

TWIN HOME: A two-family dwelling; provided, however, each of the dwelling units shall be located on
a separate lot.

VARIANCE: A departure from the terms of this title as applied to a specific building or lot, which the
board of appeals may permit, contrary to the regulations of this title for the district in which such
building or lot is located, when the board finds that a literal application of such regulations will cause a
limitation on the use of the property which does not generally apply to other properties in the same
district and for which there is no compensating gain to the public health, safety or welfare.

VISION CLEARANCE: A space at the street corner of a corner lot which is bounded by the street lines
and a setback line connecting points on each street line located as specified hereinafter.

WAREHOUSING: Shall mean any of the following:

   A.   Establishments engaged in the storage or movement of goods for themselves or other firms or
the sale, lease, or rental of goods primarily intended for industrial, institutional, or commercial
businesses.

     B.     Establishments engaged in long-term and short-term storage of goods that do not meet the
definition of a Mini-Storage Facility.

   C.   Establishments engaged in the wholesale sales, bulk storage, and distribution of goods. Such
uses may also include incidental retail sales and wholesale showrooms

    D.     Establishments used primarily for the storage, management, processing, and transmission of
digital data, which houses computer or network equipment, systems, servers, appliances, and other
associated components related to digital data storage and operations.

   E.   Establishments which provide indoor spaces with specialized surfacing and wall coverings used
primarily to host practices and/or competitions for organized team sports including, but not limited to,
tennis, pickleball, basketball, baseball, softball, soccer, football, martial arts, boxing, dance,
gymnastics, golf, hockey and/or curling. Facilities meeting the definition of Fitness Center, or facilities
constructed on municipal park, county park, church, school or university property shall not be
considered warehousing.

YARD: An open space on the same lot with a building, unoccupied and unobstructed from the ground
upward except as otherwise provided herein.

YARD, FRONT: A yard extending the full width of a lot between the nearest wall of the main building
and the front lot line or the right of way line of a proposed street on the official map, whichever
requires the greater front yard depth, excluding only such projections as are permitted hereinafter. The
front lot line of a corner lot shall be that street line upon which the principal entrance faces.

YARD, REAR: A yard extending the full width of the lot between the rear lot line and the nearest wall of
the main building, excluding only such projections as are permitted hereinafter. In the case of irregular



or triangular lots, where none of the lines bounding the rear of the lot are parallel or approximately
parallel to the front lot line, the rear lot line for the purposes of this title shall be a line fifteen feet (15')
long, wholly within the lot, parallel to the front lot line or the main chord thereof, and at the maximum
distance from the front lot line.

YARD, SIDE: A yard extending from the front yard to the rear yard, between the side lot line and the
nearest wall of the main building, excluding only such projections as are permitted hereinafter. (1975
Code Ch. 18 § III; amd. Ord. 2006-12, 6-5-2006; Ord. 2006-23, 12-4-2006; 2009 Code; Ord. 2009-01,
2-16-2009; Ord. 2013-07, 4-1-2013; Ord. 2013-16, 10-7-2013; Ord. 2024-04, 3-18-2024; Ord. 2024-
05, 4-15-2024)



REZONING MAP
CITY OF MENOMONIE

I-3 GENERAL INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

350'-NOTIFICATION LIMITS AS REQUIRED
BY THE CITY ORDINANCE

I-1 RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL DISTRICT

REZONE FROM  A TO I-1 B-1 EXTRATERRITORIAL ZONING GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT
C OPEN DEVELOPMENT - CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

C O R P O R A T I O N

A AGRICULTURE DISTRICT



��

����
����

����

��������
���

���
���	


�

��
��
��
�	

�

��

��
�

�

��
��

��
��
��
���
��



��
���
��

�
��

	��
����
����


���
��
�
�
��

�
���
������

�

���������

 
���
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
��
�

�!
��

��
�
�"��������
��������
��

����
������
���

��
��

�
�

!�
�

#�
��

�
�

!�
�

���

����

���

����

����

���

���

���

�

�

�

�

�

��

�

�

�	

��

�


�� ��

��



	

$ %$$$ &$$$ "���

���������	
���
�	
�	
	
����	������
	���
����	

�������

���
�	���	��
���
��
����
��
�����
����������


�	
	
����	������
	���
����	

����
	�����	
����
����
	��
����
���

����
	��� 	����	
����
	�!	���	
����

" ����
#���
����	����������	
���
�	
��
#�	�������
������������
�� 	����	
����	
����
�
����
���
�
��������
��
$#
������
��%�����	���
�	&	���	�
'�	
�����	%(���
���$
	��%��
)�

��
		��
��
���	�*��	


�����+��
��
�

����,	�

� �		�-	 ����
�" ���
����






Percent of state agriculture
sales

Total and Per Farm Overview, 2022 and change since 2017

2022
% change

since 2017

Number of farms 1,209 -6

Land in farms (acres) 372,774 +7

Average size of farm (acres) 308 +14

Total ($)

Market value of products sold 381,326,000 +79

Government payments 3,253,000 +75

Farm-related income 9,712,000 -23

Total farm production expenses 287,533,000 +62

Net cash farm income 106,758,000 +116

Per farm average ($)

Market value of products sold 315,406 +91

Government payments a 11,661 +236

Farm-related income a 13,737 -3

Total farm production expenses 237,827 +72

Net cash farm income 88,303 +130

2
Share of Sales by Type (%)

Crops 44

Livestock, poultry, and products 56

Land in Farms by Use (acres)

Cropland 260,795

Pastureland 14,741

Woodland 71,457

Other 25,781

Acres irrigated: 51,998

14% of land in farms

Land Use Practices (% of farms)

No till 30

Reduced till 26

Intensive till 15

Cover crop 17

Farms by Value of Sales Farms by Size

Number Percent of Total b Number Percent of Total b

Less than $2,500 367 30 1 to 9 acres 92 8

$2,500 to $4,999 103 9 10 to 49 acres 314 26

$5,000 to $9,999 117 10 50 to 179 acres 385 32

$10,000 to $24,999 144 12 180 to 499 acres 247 20

$25,000 to $49,999 94 8 500 to 999 acres 79 7

$50,000 to $99,999 88 7 1,000+ acres 92 8

$100,000 or more 296 24

Dunn County
Wisconsin



Dunn County

Wisconsin, 2022
Page 2

Market Value of Agricultural Products Sold

Sales
($1,000)

Rank
in

State c

Counties
Producing

Item

Rank
in

U.S. c

Counties
Producing

Item

Total 381,326 17 72 343 3,078

Crops 167,578 10 72 488 3,074

Grains, oilseeds, dry beans, dry peas 145,975 7 72 421 2,917

Tobacco - - 5 - 267

Cotton and cottonseed - - - - 647

Vegetables, melons, potatoes, sweet potatoes 8,192 14 72 304 2,831

Fruits, tree nuts, berries (D) 58 71 (D) 2,711

Nursery, greenhouse, floriculture, sod 1,179 44 71 899 2,660

Cultivated Christmas trees, short rotation
woody crops (D) (D) 67 (D) 1,274

Other crops and hay 11,627 9 71 297 3,035

Livestock, poultry, and products 213,747 19 72 312 3,076

Poultry and eggs 8,797 15 71 623 3,027

Cattle and calves 36,865 16 71 490 3,047

Milk from cows 164,649 16 66 74 1,770

Hogs and pigs 2,301 12 68 550 2,814

Sheep, goats, wool, mohair, milk 598 19 68 327 2,967

Horses, ponies, mules, burros, donkeys 278 20 65 912 2,907

Aquaculture (D) (D) 53 (D) 1,190

Other animals and animal products (D) (D) 71 (D) 2,909

Producers d 2,111

Sex
Male 1,345
Female 766

Age
<35 156
35 – 64 1,196
65 and older 759

Race
American Indian/Alaska Native -
Asian 14
Black or African American -
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander -
White 2,095
More than one race 2

Other characteristics
Hispanic, Latino, Spanish origin 20
With military service 128
New and beginning farmers 565

Percent of farms that:

Have internet
access 85

Farm
organically 1

Sell directly to
consumers 8

Hire
farm labor 22

Are family
farms 97

Top Crops in Acres e

Corn for grain 96,715
Soybeans for beans 75,593
Forage (hay/haylage), all 42,919
Corn for silage/greenchop 18,298
Dry edible beans (D)

Livestock Inventory (Dec 31, 2022)

Broilers and other
meat-type chickens 1,363

Cattle and calves 67,781
Goats 1,496
Hogs and pigs 6,501
Horses and ponies 1,127
Layers 22,835
Pullets 249
Sheep and lambs 1,669
Turkeys (D)

a Average per farm receiving. b May not add to 100% due to rounding. c Among counties whose rank can be displayed. d Data collected for a maximum

of four producers per farm. e Crop commodity names may be shortened; see full names at www.nass.usda.gov/go/cropnames.pdf. f Position below the
line does not indicate rank. (D) Withheld to avoid disclosing data for individual operations. (NA) Not available. (Z) Less than half of the unit shown. (-)
Represents zero.









MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

1 
 

TO:   Plan Commission 
 
FROM:  David Schofield, Director of Public Works  
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Ordinance 2025-06 – Rezoning of Certain Lands Along 21st Street NE 

and 7th Avenue NE 
 
DATE:   July 28, 2025 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Menomonie Alliance Church and YMCA have submitted the attached Request for Rezoning from 
Single Family Residential (R-1) to Local Commercial (B-2) for their property in the southeast 
quadrant of the intersection of 21st Street NE and 7th Avenue NE.   
 
The intended use is a day care center. 
 
Atty. Ludeman has prepared Proposed Ordinance 2025-06 which, if adopted, would complete 
the proposed rezoning.  Because this pertains to land use, Proposed Ordinance 2025-06 must be 
referred to the Plan Commission prior to adoption by the City Council. 
 
City Staff would suggest that the Plan Commission should consider the following questions with 
respect to the proposed rezoning: 
 

1. Is the proposed Local Commercial (B-2) District compatible with the applicant’s request?  
a. City Staff notes that the applicants requested Local Commercial (B-2) District on 

the Request for Rezoning (which is attached). 
 

2. Is the proposed land use compatible with the proposed Local Commercial (B-2) District?  
a. The Local Commercial (B-2) District allows: 

i. “Churches, public and parochial schools, public libraries and other public 
educational and cultural institutions” (via passthrough from R-1), 

ii. “Public recreational and community center buildings and grounds, such as 
parks, playgrounds, golf courses and swimming pools” (via passthrough 
from R-1), 

iii. “Fitness center” (via passthrough to B-1), 
iv. “Private business and commercial schools” (via passthrough to B-1), 
v. “Commercial recreation uses, other than a fitness center”. 

  



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

2 
 

3. Is the proposed Local Commercial (B-2) District the most restrictive that accommodates 
the proposed land use? 

a. City Staff notes a day care center would be allowed use in the General 
Commercial (B-1) District which is less restrictive than the proposed Local 
Commercial (B-2) District.   
 

4. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the City’s adjacent zoning districts? 
a. City Staff notes that the City’s zoning map (which is attached) shows the lands to 

the west, north and northeast of the proposed rezoning in the City are zoned 
Single Family Residential (R-1) District. 

b. City Staff notes that the City’s zoning map shows the lands to the southeast and 
south of the proposed rezoning in the City are zoned Limited Multiple Family 
Residential (R-2) District. 

c. City Staff notes that the nearest Local Commercial (B-2) District is the Mayo 
Health Systems Campus, located approximately 500-feet to the south.   
 

5. Is the proposed rezoning consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan? 
a. City Staff notes that the City’s Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map (which 

is attached) shows “Institutional” on the subject property.  
 

6. Is the proposed land use consistent with historical use of the property? 
a. City Staff notes that a private parochial elementary school was operated on the 

property for many years. 
 
The Plan Commission can take the following actions: 

 

• If the Plan Commission concurs with the proposed rezoning from Single Family 
Residential (R-1) District to Local Commercial (B-2) District, the appropriate motion 
would be Recommend approval of proposed Ordinance 2025-06 (simple majority vote).   
 

• If the Plan Commission does not concur with the proposed rezoning from Single Family 
Residential (R-1) District to Local Commercial (B-2) District, the appropriate motion 
would be Recommend denial of proposed Ordinance 2025-06 (simple majority vote).   

 
The Plan Commission’s recommendation will be shared with the City Council on August 4, 2025.  
A public hearing will be held that evening City Council meeting (which has been publicly noticed 
including publication of a Class II Public Notice and a mailing to all property owners within 350-
feet) to gather public input.  After the public hearing, the City Council will consider adoption of 
Proposed Ordinance 2025-06.  



MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

3 
 

Attachments: 

• Location Map 

• Request for Rezoning 

• City Zoning Map 

• Comprehensive Plan Future Zoning Map 

• Proposed Ordinance 2025-06 















R-3

R-1

C

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

OPEN DEVELOPMENT CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT
T-1 TECHNOLOGY PARK DISTRICT

B-2 LOCAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT

R-2 LIMITED MULTIPLE RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT

REZONING MAP
CITY OF MENOMONIE

350'-NOTIFICATION LIMITS AS REQUIRED
BY THE CITY ORDINANCE

REZONE FROM  R-1 TO B-2 

C O R P O R A T I O N



��

����
����

����

��������
���

���
���	


�

��
��
��
�	

�

��

��
�

�

��
��

��
��
��
���
��



��
���
��

�
��

	��
����
����


���
��
�
�
��

�
���
������

�

���������

 
���
��
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
��
�

�!
��

��
�
�"��������
��������
��

����
������
���

��
��

�
�

!�
�

#�
��

�
�

!�
�

���

����

���

����

����

���

���

���

�

�

�

�

�

��

�

�

�	

��

�


�� ��

��



	

$ %$$$ &$$$ "���

���������	
���
�	
�	
	
����	������
	���
����	

�������

���
�	���	��
���
��
����
��
�����
����������


�	
	
����	������
	���
����	

����
	�����	
����
����
	��
����
���

����
	��� 	����	
����
	�!	���	
����

" ����
#���
����	����������	
���
�	
��
#�	�������
������������
�� 	����	
����	
����
�
����
���
�
��������
��
$#
������
��%�����	���
�	&	���	�
'�	
�����	%(���
���$
	��%��
)�

��
		��
��
���	�*��	


�����+��
��
�

����,	�

� �		�-	 ����
�" ���
����








MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

1 
 

TO:   Plan Commission 
 
FROM:  David Schofield, Director of Public Works  
 
SUBJECT: Kettner Certified Survey Map on August Lane 
 
DATE:   July 28, 2025 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Doug Kettner has proposed to reconfigure the lots in a two lot CSM he previously completed in 
2023 on August Lane.  The entire property is zoned A.  
 
City staff have reviewed the proposed certified survey map and recommend approval. 
 
If the Plan Commission concurs, the appropriate motion would be Approve Kettner’s Proposed 
Certified Survey Map on August Lane, as presented (simple majority).   
 
Attachments: 

• Location Map 

• Proposed Certified Survey Map 
 



Kettner CSM Created by: 







MEMORANDUM 
David Schofield, Director of Public Works 

dschofield@menomonie-wi.gov 
715-232-2221 Ext.1020  

 
 
 

1 
 

TO:   Plan Commission 
 
FROM:  David Schofield, Director of Public Works  
 
SUBJECT: Peissig Certified Survey Map on Eagle Point Drive 
 
DATE:   July 28, 2025 Plan Commission Meeting 
 
 
Eric and Jaclyn Peissig have proposed to merge two (2) existing lots in the Third Addition to 
Eagle Point Plat into a single buildable lot by way of the proposed certified survey map before 
the Plan Commission.  The entire property is zoned R-1.  
 
City staff have reviewed the proposed certified survey map and recommend approval. 
 
If the Plan Commission concurs, the appropriate motion would be Approve Peissig’s Proposed 
Certified Survey Map on Eagle Point Drive, as presented (simple majority).   
 
Attachments: 

• Location Map 

• Proposed Certified Survey Map 
 



Peissig CSM Created by: 



Preliminary



Preliminary


	Agenda
	02_20250527_Plan Commission Minutes
	04_A_20250728_Balloonist Annexation Plan Commission Memo
	Annexation Location Map
	Annexation Petition
	City Code 10-6 Agriculture
	City Code 10-5 Conservancy
	Proposed Ordinance 2025-04

	04_B_20250728_Balloonist Rezone Plan Commission Memo
	Rezone Location Map
	Request to Rezone
	City Code 10-14 Restricted Industrial
	City Code 10-1 Definitions
	Zoning Map
	Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map
	Town/City Development Map
	USDA Census of Agriculture
	Proposed Ordinance 2025-05

	04_C_20250728_Alliance Rezoning Plan Commission Memo
	Rezone Location Map
	Request to Rezone
	Zoning Map
	Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map
	Proposed Ordinance 2025-06

	04_D_20250728 Kettner CSM Plan Commission Memo
	04_E_20250728 Peissig CSM Plan Commission Memo

